
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 

You can view the 
agenda online by using 
a smart phone camera 
and scanning the code 
below: 

 
 

Date: 
 

Thursday, 15 July 2021 

Time: 
 

6.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

Virtual Meeting 

7 July 2021 
 

PART 1 

1. Apologies for absence  

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee  

 i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
ii) Other Interests 

 

3. To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 4) 

4. Updated Street Trading Policy (Pages 5 - 30) 

5. Licensing Enforcement Activity (Pages 31 - 34) 

 
MARK TRILLO 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

Membership of Licensing Committee 
Councillor M Stone (Chair) Councillor J Perkins (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor R Baker Councillor L Dowson 
Councillor C Farrell Councillor P Hardy 
Councillor I Huddlestone Councillor E Kelly 
Councillor E Lawson Councillor R McKeown 
Councillor K Sizeland Councillor S Young 

 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
 

Meeting: Thursday, 28 January 2021 at 6.30 pm in Virtual Meeting 
 

Present: Councillor M Stone (Chair) 
 

 Councillors R Baker, L Dowson, C Farrell, P Hardy, I Huddlestone, E Lawson, 
R McKeown, J Perkins, K Sizeland and S Young 
 
Councillors A McKeown and F Sloman were also in attendance 
 

 An apology for absence was received from Councillor D Kerr 
 

20/14 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
(Agenda Item 3) 
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 November 2020 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

20/15 STATUTORY TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE STANDARDS 2020 
(Agenda Item 4) 
 
Consideration was given to the revised statutory guidance in relation to Taxi 
and Private Hire vehicles and amendments to the Council’s current Policy to 
reflect this guidance.  Discussion took place on protecting the vulnerable 
and having signed up to the National Register of Taxi and Private Hire 
Licence Revocations and Refusals (NR3), to facilitate information sharing 
between authorities. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the contents of the report be noted, the 
recommendations in relation to the enforcement of the Council’s Taxi and 
Private Hire Licencing Policy 2016 approved and the Policy amended where 
proposed accordingly. 

20/16 STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 
(Agenda Item 5) 
 
Members were appraised of the requirement to review the Council’s Alcohol 
Licensing Policy every 5 years and considered the revised Licensing Policy 
2021-26.  Updates, amendments and clarifications had been included. 
Consideration was given to improved location plans for temporary events 
and premises, relevant parish councils being notified and processes 
followed.   
 
Pavement licensing as a separate issue, the Covid pandemic and potential 
possible effect on licensed premises were also discussed. 
 
RESOLVED: That Council be RECOMMENDED to approve the Council’s 
Licensing Policy 2021-26. 

 Page 3

Agenda Item 3




Licensing Committee 
Thursday, 28 January 2021 

 

2 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 7.12 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

 

Page 4



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Licensing Committee 

 
15 July 2021 

 

 
TITLE: 

 
Updated Street Trading Policy 2021 - 2023 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 

 
Councillor Sloman- Executive Councillor for 
Housing and Licensing 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Alicia Patterson - Head of Environmental 
Health 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
ALL WARDS 

 
 

Appendices Attached 
 
Appendix 1  Draft Policy 2021-2023 
Appendix 2 Consultation responses  

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 
1.1 The report confirms the consultation responses received to the Draft Street 

Trading Policy 2021-2023.   
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the Committee notes the consultation responses received (appendix 2) 
2.2  That the Committee approves the amendments proposed in Green and Red of 

the attached Draft Street Trading Policy (Appendix 1) 
2.3  That the Committee approves the amended Street Trading Policy 2021-2023 

 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 On 1 October 2008 the Council re-designated the streets in High Peak in 

accordance with Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 and introduced a Street Trading Consent Policy to 
provide a transparent framework for the decision making process, and to 
ensure that the system operated within constitutional arrangements. 

 
3.2 It is a requirement that licensing authorities regularly review and update 

policies to reflect changes in legislation, local circumstances and safeguarding 
issues. The last policy review was carried out in 2019. 

 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



  

3.3  The Street Trading Policy is governed by the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. A consultation was carried out between 
3rd March 2021 to 7th April 2021 with existing street traders and the public. 
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The aim of the Street Trading Policy is to improve the economic, 

environmental and social well being of the area. 
 
5. Alternative Options 
 
5.1 To amend the draft Policy as proposed together with any further amendments. 

(Recommended) 
5.2  To note the consultation responses received and not to amend the Policy. 

(Not recommended) 
 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
The successful implementation of the Street Trading Policy should 
have a positive impact on community safety and assist in the 
reduction of crime. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
None 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
The failure of the Council to review and consult on our policies on a 
regular basis may result in a judicial review being brought against 
the Council 
 

6.5 Legal 
 
High Peak Borough Council has adopted Section 4 of the Local 
Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1982, as a result all 
street trading in High Peak requires a Street Trading Consent. 
Responsibility for street trading matters within the Council sits with 
the Licensing Committee 
 

6.6 Climate Change 
 
The policy seeks to ensure that street vendors are responsible and 
where possible reduce waste and plastic use. 

Page 6



  

 
6.7 
 

Consultation 
 
A consultation has taken place with existing Street Traders and 
consultees. 
 

6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
The Street Trading Policy will be monitored during the 3 year 
period and can be reviewed at any time if considered necessary 
and appropriate. 

 
Mark Trillo 

Executive Director (Governance & Commissioning) & Deputy Chief Executive 
 
 Contact details 

 Alicia Patterson 
Head of Environmental Health 
alicia.patterson@highpeak.gov.uk 
 

 
7. Detail 
 
7.1 For the purpose of clarification the Committee may wish to note that the 

following are not street trading for the purposes of this Policy: 
 
a) Trading by a person acting as a pedlar under the authority of a pedlar’s 
certificate granted under the Pedlars Act 1871; 
b) Anything done in a market or fair the right to hold which was acquired 
by virtue of a grant (including a presumed grant) or acquired or 
established by virtue of an enactment or order; 
c) Trading in a trunk road picnic area provided by the Secretary of State 
under section 112 of the Highways Act 1980; 
d) Trading as a news vendor; 
e) Trading which – 
(i) Is carried on at premises used as a shop or in a street adjoining 
premises so used and as part of the business of the shop; 
(ii) Is carried on at premises used as a shop or in a street adjoining 
premises so used and as part of the business of the shop; 
f) selling things, or offering or exposing them for sale, as a roundsman; 
g) the use for trading under Part VIIA of the highways Act 1980 of an 
object or structure placed on, in or over a highway; 
h) the operation of facilities for recreation or refreshment under Part VIIA 
of the highways Act 1980; 
i) the doing of anything authorised by regulations made under section 5 
of the Police, Factories, etc. (Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1916.). 
The reference to trading as a news vendor in (d) is a reference to trading 
where: 
(a) the only articles sold or exposed or offered for sale are newspapers or 
periodicals; and 
(b) they are sold or exposed or offered for sale without a stall or receptacle 

Page 7



  

for them or with a stall or receptacle for them which does not: 
(i) exceed one metre in length or width or two metres in height; 
(ii) occupy a ground area exceeding 0.25 square metres; or 
(iii) stand on the carriageway of a street. 

 
7.2 Consultation - A consultation exercise was undertaken between 3rd March 

2021 and 7th April 2021. A copy of the proposed revised policy was made 
available to view on the High Peak Borough Council website, in addition a 
hard copy was available at the Buxton and Glossop Reception. All existing 
street trading vendors and event organisers were individually consulted on the 
proposals. 

 
7.2.1 The Council has received a number of responses, these are attached at 

appendix 2.  
 

 

Page 8



1 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REGULATORY SERVICES 

Street Trading 
Policy 2021-2023 

 

 

 
This policy sets out the Council’s approach for managing street 
trading in the district and the process for applications and 
making decisions. 
 
The policy was approved by the Council’s Licensing Committee 
on ………………… and came into effect on.................................... 
 
 
 
Black Text = current policy  
Green Text = new provisions/updated guidance 
Red Text = changes to reflect comments from consultation 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 9

https://www.bing.com/images/search?q=food+hygiene+rating+image&id=AC0EDD377BB9E5F11DEE00280E3D6BC71593504C&FORM=IQFRBA
https://www.bing.com/images/search?q=food+hygiene+rating+image&id=AC0EDD377BB9E5F11DEE00280E3D6BC71593504C&FORM=IQFRBA
https://www.bing.com/images/search?q=food+hygiene+rating+image&id=AC0EDD377BB9E5F11DEE00280E3D6BC71593504C&FORM=IQFRBA
https://www.bing.com/images/search?q=food+hygiene+rating+image&id=AC0EDD377BB9E5F11DEE00280E3D6BC71593504C&FORM=IQFRBA


2 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

INDEX PAGE 

 
Purpose 

 
3 

 
What is Street Trading? 

 
4 

Application Process – New Consent.  
5 

Identification Plates, Renewal of annual 
consents. 
Daily Consents. 
Consideration of Applications 

 
6-7 

 

Special Events and Fee Structure 
 

8 

 
Convictions 

 
9 - 11 

 

General Conditions 
(Conditions - Ice Cream 
Vans) 

 
11 - 13 

 
Enforcement 

 
13 

 
Administration, Exercise and Delegation 

 
14 

 
Appendix 1 Timescales 

 
15 

 
Appendix 2 Delegation 

 
15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



3 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

 

Purpose 
 

The aim of the statement of street trading consent policy (“the policy”) is to 
provide a consistent and transparent approach to the method of providing 
street trading consents within the High Peak Borough Council area. 

 
To achieve this aim, the Council is committed to partnership working with 
Derbyshire Constabulary, Derbyshire County Council, the trade, and local 
fixed premises businesses. 

 
The policy sets out how we intend to manage the street trading consent 
function and how we will ensure the process is fair. It confirms the fee 
structure for the service, with all such fees based on a cost recovery basis. 

 
The Council has an overall aim to improve the quality of life in the High Peak. 
The Council has four main aims around which it has centred its ambitions for 
the community. These aims are to: - 

 

 Provide Quality Services in Partnership with Communities. 

 Meet Financial Challenges and Provide Value for Money 

 Support Economic Development and Regeneration 

 Protect and Improve the Environment 

 
The policy recognises the importance of street trading to the Borough of High 
Peak and that it can add to the vibrancy and vitality whilst not adding to 
nuisance and crime and disorder or cause other problems. 

 
This policy will be the subject of monitoring and review after three years. 

 
This policy will be applied in a manner which is consistent with the Council’s 
equalities policies. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



4 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

What is Street Trading? 
 

Street trading means the selling, exposing, or offering for sale any article in a 
street. The term 'street' includes any road, footway, or other area to which the 
public have access without payment (this can include private land). High Peak 
Borough Council (“the Council”) has adopted Schedule 4 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“the 1982 Act”) which 
means that consent is required before trading in certain places. Other 
locations have prohibitions on street trading at any time. 

 
This policy does not include activities such as placing goods for sale on the 
street from a shop, street café’s operating from a fixed premise or the siting of 
“A” Boards on the street as this is not within the remit of the above legislation 
(providing the same products/merchandise that the shop sells are being sold 
outside). 

 
 

Exemptions from the need to obtain a Consent. 
 

Some types of trade are legally exempt from the need to obtain a street 
trading consent. These include: 

 

 A person trading under the authority of a pedlars’ certificate granted 
under the Pedlars Act 1871 

 Trade carried out by rounds men e.g., milkmen. 

 Trade carried on at a petrol filling station. 

 Market created by statue or grant. 

 Trading as a newsvendor. 

 Trading in and around shops. 

 Charity collections. 

 Indoor Market Areas (Indoor market areas do not constitute street trading as 

they can be classed as shops which are exempt from street trading legislation). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



5 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

Application Process – New Annual Consent. 
 

 Applications must be made on the application form provided by the 
Council. 

 All applicants must be aged 17 or over. 
 Basic Disclosure obtained from the Disclosure and Barring Service (no 

older than 3 months). 
 Map of location of intended trading with position of van, unit or stall 

marked on. 
 A copy of the applicant’s current Public Liability Insurance (minimum 

of 5,000,000 will be required prior to the commencement of trading. 
 Photograph of the trading unit. 
 Size and dimensions of the unit including any support unit or 

equipment which must be a moveable structure and cannot be sited 
for more than 28 days in one period (unless planning permission has 
been granted by the Authority for a permanent structure) 

 Proposed food businesses must be registered under the Food 
Regulations with the Local Authority where their vehicle is. 
based and provide evidence that they are registered. The Authority 
has an expectation of 4 stars or higher. 

 If the business is based in the High Peak, and they are not currently 
registered with High Peak Borough Council, they should register with 
the Council. 

 2 passport photographs of the applicant. 
 DVLA Licence to demonstrate capacity to tow a vehicle. 
 Completed declaration form of convictions (please see conviction 

guidelines for further information) 
 Copy of planning permission if to be sited for more than 28 days 

(without moving) or a permanent structure. 
 

Consultation with interested parties (Annual Consents only). 
 

On receipt of an application for an annual consent, the Council may consult 
with all or selected parties (where applicable) from the list below: - 

 
 Occupiers of premises in the vicinity of the proposed trading 

location. 
 The Town or Parish council. 
 Derbyshire Police. 
 The Highway Authority at Derbyshire County Council 
 Ward members. 
 Other relevant council departments. 

 Any other body deemed appropriate. 
 

The application will also be displayed on the Council’s website. 

 
Applications will be considered within the time limits set in Appendix 1 where 
possible. 

 

 

Page 13



6 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

Once a decision has been made on the application, the applicant will be 
notified in writing, if the applicant is successful then the 1st instalment of the 
fee (annual consents only) is required prior to the commencement of trading 
and the consent being issued. 

 
Identification Plates 

 

For annual consents only, the Council will issue one identification plate which 
is included in the initial fee. The plate will need to be secured to the rear of 
the unit/van and remain in situ at all times whilst the Consent is valid. If lost 
or stolen a replacement plate can be requested from the Council but will 
incur additional charges. 

 
Renewal Applications for Annual Street Trading Consents. 

 
 Applications must be made on the application form provided by the 

Council. 
(Please note applications will not be accepted if the agreed 
payment plan for the previous annual consent is in arrears). 

 Renewal applications must be submitted no later than one month prior 
to the expiry of the current consent. 

 Completed declaration form of convictions (please see conviction 
guidelines for further information) 

 A copy of the applicant’s current Public Liability Insurance (minimum 
of 5,000,000 will be required prior to the commencement of trading. 

 
Application Process – Daily Consent. 

 
 Applications must be made on the application form provided by the 

Council. 
 All applicants must be aged 17 or over. 
 Application fee. 
 Map of location of intended trading with position of van, unit or stall 

marked on. 
 Photograph of the trading unit. 
 A copy of the applicant’s current Public Liability Insurance (minimum 

of 5,000,000. 
 DVLA Licence to demonstrate capacity to tow a vehicle. 
 Completed declaration form of convictions (please see conviction 

guidelines for further information) 
 Landowner’s consent to trade from the location. 
 Proposed food businesses must be registered under the Food 

Regulations with the Local Authority where their vehicle is. 
based and provide evidence that they are registered. The Authority 
has an expectation of 4 stars or higher. 

 If the business is based in the High Peak, and they are not currently 
registered with High Peak Borough Council, they should register with 
the Council. 

 
 

Page 14



7 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

Please note failure to provide the necessary documents within the specified 
timescales may result in the consent not being issued. 

 
Consideration of Applications 

 
The Council will consider each individual application on its merits and in most 
cases grant a street trading consent unless, in its opinion: 

 

 There is not enough space for the applicant to trade in the manner 

proposed without causing undue interference or inconvenience to 

persons using the street. 

 There are already enough traders trading in the vicinity (from shops or 

other stalls) in the goods in which the applicant desires to trade. 

 There is undue concentration of traders trading in the street in which 

the applicant desires to trade. 

 The consent, if granted, will result in nuisance to members of the 

public, residents, and local businesses due to the likely noise, smell, 

litter, disturbance, or other problems which will be caused by granting 

the consent. 

 The size, nature, or appearance of the proposed stall (and any 

associated equipment) is inappropriate for the proposed location in 

terms of amenity or public or highway safety. 

 The proposed trading hours are outside the usual business hours of 

shops in the vicinity. 

 Previous convictions for relevant offences (dishonesty, Food Safety, 

Health and Safety, Licensing, or other related issues) 

 Failure on a previous occasion to pay street trading consent fees 

within the agreed timescales. 

 Having received relevant representation(s) and the application is 
referred to the Licensing Sub-Committee for determination and 
subsequently refused. 

 
Special Events 

 
At special events involving a number of stalls and vans in one area, the 
Council will issue one consent only to the person organising the event, rather 
than to each individual trader and that person or company shall be 
responsible for all traders under their consent and for ensuring that all traders 
are complying with the conditions of the consent. 

 
Application Process – Special Event Consent. 

 
 Applications must be made on the application form provided by the 

Council and must be submitted no later than 28 days prior to the 
event. 

 Application fee. 
 

Page 15



8 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

 Map of location of intended trading with position of each van, unit or 
stall marked on (if not known at time of application MUST be 
submitted no later than 7 working days prior to the event. (Any request 
for additional traders after the above period will not be permitted). 

 All individual traders must be over the age of 17. 
 All individual traders must have Public Liability Insurance (minimum of 

5,000,000 and must produce a copy to the event organiser and if 
requested an Authorised Officer of High Peak Borough Council. 

 Proposed food businesses must be registered under the Food 
Regulations with the Local Authority where their vehicle is. 
based and provide evidence that they are registered. The Authority 
has an expectation of 4 stars or higher. 

 If the business is based in the High Peak, and they are not currently 
registered with High Peak Borough Council, they must register with 
the Council. 

 The event organiser must provide to the Council proof that all traders 
have the required food rating of 4 stars or above 7 days prior to the 
event. If proof is not provided the trader is not permitted to trade. 

 

Please note failure to provide the necessary documents within the specified 
timescales may result in the consent not being issued. 

 

Ticketed Events. 
 

If the event is ticketed on private land, then no consent is required. However, 
if the event is on private land but accessible to the public, then a consent will 
be required, and the applicant must produce a written authorisation from the 
landowner to the Council with their application. 

 
Transfer/Amendments 

 

 Street trading consents are non-transferable. 
 

 No amendments (e.g. date changes/location/type of stall or van) may 
be made without prior written consent of the Licensing Authority 

 

 Any consent which is valid but is no longer required should be 
surrendered to the Authority in writing. 

 
Fee Structure 

 
The fee structure is available on the Council’s website and is updated and 
reviewed annually. 

 
For special consents the number of traders covered is as follows: 

 

 Category 1 (Up to 10 Traders) 

 Category 2 (10 to 20 Traders) 

 Category 3 (Over 20 Traders) 

Page 16



9 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

Charitable Organisations. 
 

If the event is a charitable event and all the profit from the stalls or units will 
be donated to charity, then a Charitable Street Trading Consent can be 
applied for. 

 
There will be no charge for this consent. 

 

Please note that your organisation will need to be registered with the Charity 
Commission, be CIC registered, or demonstrate that it is entirely charitable in 
nature, to qualify for this consent, and you will need to supply a detailed 
account of donations to registered charities within six weeks of the event. 

 
If the event is Charitable and all of the profits go to the Charity, but you have 
invited itinerant traders to come to the event to provide food and refreshments 
to persons attending the event then you will have to apply for either a 
category 1, 2 or category 3 consent. 

 

Any trader seeking a consent for Street Trading should also seek advice from 
the Council if further permissions are necessary e.g. Temporary Event 
Notifications etc. 

 
 

Guidelines relating to the relevance of convictions. 
 

General Policy 

 
It should be advised that the Council will take relevant prior convictions into 
account when it decides whether to grant a street trading consent. 

 

Each case will be decided on its own merits. 
 

The Council will assess whether an applicant for the grant or renewal of a 
street trading consent is a suitable person to hold or to continue to hold a 
street trading consent. 

 
In considering the previous convictions of the applicant, the Council will 
consider the following: 

 

 Whether the conviction is relevant. 
 The seriousness of the offence 
 The length of time since the offence occurred. 
 Whether there is a pattern of offending behaviour 
 Whether that person’s circumstances have changed since the offence 

occurred and 
 The circumstances surround the offence and the explanation offered by 

that person. 
 

 

Page 17



10 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

Offence Types 
 

The following is a description of the Council’s general approach to certain 
categories of offences. 

 
Dishonesty 

 
The holders of a street trading consent and their assistants must be persons 
who can be trusted. It is easy for a dishonest tradesman or assistant to take 
advantage of the public 

 
Members of the public using a street trading outlet expect the holder and 
his/her assistant to be honest and trustworthy. 

 
For these reasons a serious view will be taken on any conviction involving 
dishonesty. In general, an application for the grant or renewal of a street 
trading consent is unlikely to be granted a street trading consent where the 
application is made within 3 to 5 years of a conviction or the date of release 
from jail depending upon the nature and seriousness of the offence. 

 
Violence 

 
As street traders and their assistants have close contact with the public, a 
robust approach will be taken with applications that have convictions for 
violence. In cases where the commission of an offence involves loss of life, a 
street trading consent will normally be refused. In other cases, a period of 3 – 
10 years free of conviction from the date of conviction or the date or release 
from jail where a custodial sentence has been imposed, depending upon the 
nature and seriousness of the offence will generally be required before an 
application is likely to be considered favourably. 

 
Drugs 

 
Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence that relates to the supply 
or importation or possession of drugs and the date of the conviction or the 
release from jail, where a custodial sentence has been imposed, is less than 5 
to 10 years before the date of the application, an application will normally be 
refused. After 5 years from a conviction or the date of release from jail, where 
a custodial sentence has been imposed, the circumstances of the offence and 
any evidence which shows that a person is now a suitable person to hold a 
street trading consent will be taken into consideration. 

 
Sexual and indecency offences 

 
As the holders of street trading consents and their assistants, and in particular 
those who sell ice cream, have access to children, applicants who have 
convictions for rape, indecent assault, any sexual offence involving children 
and any conviction for an offence under the Sexual Offences Act 2003 will 
normally be refused a street trading consent. Where an applicant has a 

 

Page 18



11 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

conviction for a sexual offence such as indecent exposure, they will normally 
be refused a street trading until they can show a substantial period usually 
between 5 and 10 years free of any such convictions from the date of 
conviction or the date of release from jail where a custodial sentence has 
been imposed. 

 
When considering applications, the Council may take into account any 
information of a sexual nature which does not amount to a criminal offence 
that is brought to its attention where that information may indicate that an 
applicant may not be a suitable person to hold a street trading consent. In 
cases where the Council considers that information shows an applicant is not 
a suitable person, it will normally require a period of not less than 5 years free 
of such incidents from the date on which the incident occurred or, if more than 
one from the date of the last incident. 

 
Conditions - general 

 
Conditions will be imposed as the Council considers reasonably necessary 
and relevant in any particular case. The usual conditions to be attached to 
every street trading consent detailing the holder’s responsibilities to maintain 
public safety, avoid nuisance and generally preserve the amenity of the 
locality are as follows: - 

 
1. The place in which the consent holder is permitted to trade. 

2. The day(s) and times at which the consent holder is permitted to trade. 

3. A description of the types of articles in which they are permitted to 
trade. 

4. The nature, size, and type of stall stand etc which is to be used. 

5. That the street trading consent notice issued by the Council must be 

conspicuously displayed on the stall. 

6. If food is to be sold, that there are satisfactory handwashing facilities in 

line with the food premise registration. 
7. Any employees under the age of 17 must be supervised at all times. 
8. That the trader is not to trade from the stall unless he holds and 

maintains sufficient public liability cover (currently 5,000,000) 
9. Restrictions on the means the trader may use to attract custom to their 

stall (could include restrictions on the use of A Boards/amplified music 
etc) 

10. That a suitable receptacle for litter must be provided and removed daily 
at the close of trading. Clearing-up of all loose litter in the vicinity arising 
from their activities, before leaving site.  

11. That the location must be kept in a clean and tidy condition at the end 
of trading hours each day. 

12. That the stall must be removed each day at the end of trading hours 
unless agreement in writing is obtained from High Peak Borough 
Council. 

13. That the trader must comply with any reasonable request of a police 
officer or authorised officer of the Council. 

Page 19



12 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

14. Where possible the trader should seek to reduce the use of single 
use plastics.  

15. That the trader must produce to a police officer or authorised officer 
of the Council a copy of the consent on demand. (as per condition 
e). 

16. Trader must retain their registration with their local Environmental 
Health Service for Food Hygiene purposes. 

17. Operators must cease trading immediately upon expiry of a consent or 
when payments (as per individual written agreements) are overdue or 
when asked to do so by an officer of the Council or police officer. 

18. The trader may be prohibited from trading at certain times due to other 
extenuating circumstances. 

19. The trader is responsible for advising the Council of any change of 
name or address. 

 

Conditions – Ice Cream Vans 

1. May only trade at the locations stated on the consent. 

2. May only trade during the dates and times specified on the consent. 

3. Must not trade within 200 metres of any schools. 

4. May only sell the goods described on the consent. 

5. May only use the vehicle specified on the consent. 

6. Must display the Street Trading Consent and its conditions 
conspicuously on the vehicle. 

7. Must provide satisfactory hand washing facilities if food is sold. 

8. Must hold and maintain sufficient public liability insurance cover 

(currently £5,000,000). 

9. Must refrain from the use of signage that is not an integral part of the 

vehicle, including fly posting and A boards. 

10. Where food is sold, must provide a suitable receptacle for litter, and 
dispose of such litter with the business’s trade waste and the location 
must be left in a reasonably clean and tidy condition at the end of the 
trading hours each day. 

11. Must remove the vehicle each day at the end of trading hours unless 

agreement in writing is obtained from the Council. 

12. Must comply with any reasonable request of a police officer or 

authorised officer of the Council. 

13. Must produce to a police officer or authorised officer of the Council a 

copy of the consent on demand. 

14. Must maintain their registration with their local Environmental Health 

Service for Food Hygiene purposes if food is prepared, stored, or sold. 

15. Must cease trading immediately upon expiry of the consent or when 
payments (as per any individual written arrangements with the Council) 

Page 20



13 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

are overdue. 

16. Shall not allow the vehicle to cause an obstruction to road users or to 
the occupiers of adjoining premises. 

Page 21



14 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

17. The consent holder shall not stop to trade so as to cause any 
interference with the normal flow of traffic. 

18. The consent holder shall comply at all times with the Code of Guidance 
on Noise from Ice-Cream Van Chimes in England 2013 

19. Must have a full driving licence. 

 
Conditions – Special Events 

 
As well as the usual conditions applying to a street trading consent, conditions 
may also be imposed where reasonably necessary to control and maintain 
access to the area by emergency services and access by other vehicles 
during the event, employment of marshals, provision of WC’s and additional 
conditions relating to removal of debris/waste from the area. 

 
 

Competing for Sites 
 

If any application is received on a site where an existing consent has already 
been granted, or where there are competing applications for an application 
for renewal has been received, in all cases these will be determined by the 
Licensing Officer. Normally the Council will give priority to the first application 
or existing consent holder but there may be occasions when it is appropriate 
to deviate from that general approach where the Council considers it is 
appropriate. 

 
Enforcement 

 
Any enforcement action taken by the Council will be in accordance with the 
Council’s Enforcement Policies and consideration will be given to the national 
Enforcement Concordat. 

 
Failure to comply with the conditions may lead to suspension, revocation, or 
non-renewal of the consent. 

 
Failure to make one agreed payment under any written agreement or invoice 
may result in revocation of a Consent. 

 

Any person found trading without consent in a Consent Street or in a 
Prohibited Street will be subject to enforcement action by the Council and 
may be prosecuted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



15 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

Administration, Exercise and Delegation of Functions 
 

The powers and duties of the Council with regard to Street Trading Consent 
may be carried out by the Licensing Sub Committee or by officers acting 
under delegated authority. Since many of the functions are administrative or 
compliance monitoring based in nature, in the interests of speed, efficiency 
and cost-effectiveness, the Council supports the principle of delegating 
routine matters to officers. Appendix 1 sets out the delegation of functions 
and decisions. 

 
At the officers’ discretion, any applications normally dealt with by officers may 
be passed up for Licensing Sub Committee determination. 

 
All applications will normally be subject to delegated authority decisions 
where no objections have been received. Where relevant representations are 
received these will be determined by the Licensing Sub-Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



16 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

 
 

 

APPENDIX 1 - TIMESCALES 

 

 

Sub Committee hearing & 
Decision. 

 

7 days for any applicant 
representations 

 
Objections Received 

referral to Licensing Sub 
Committee 

 
If no objections received 
application deemed 
granted. 

 
If all necessary documents 
received application 
deemed as granted. 

 

28 Day Consultation period 
for new applications. 

Acknowledge receipt of a 
Daily, Special Event, 

Charitable Consent with 2 

working days. 

 
Acknowledge receipt of a 
new application within 5 

working days. 

 
 

APPLICATIONS 

P
age 24



17 | P a g e   
D R A  F T S T RE E T T RA DI  NG P O L I CY 2 0 2 1 - 20  2 3 

 

 

 

 
Decision Notified to applicant 

 

 
Decision Notified to applicant 

 

 
Decision Notified to applicant 

 

 
Where Objections received 
referred to Sub Committee 

 
Officers Decision 

 
All Cases 

 
Officers Decision 

 
All Cases 

 
Officers Decision or refer to 

Licensing Sub Committee Decision 

All Cases 

Officers Decision 

Where no objections/complaints 
received in the previous 

12 months 

 

 
Ad hoc application for consents 

less than 7 consecutive days 

 

Application for street trading 
consent by new customers in 
previously approved pitches 

 

Application for a permanent 
street trading consent for all new 

locations 

 
Renewal application for consent 
from a trader who has traded in 
the same location in the previous 

12 months. 

 

 
Street Trading Consents 

 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 - DELEGATIONS 
 

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



CONSULTATIONS RECEIVED AND SUGGESTED IMPLEMENTATION FOR THE POLICY  
 
 
 
Bamford with Thornhill PC 

“This was discussed at our Parish Council meeting yesterday. Councillors voted that the 
policy should give greater focus to: 

 Street traders not being permitted to sell items containing plastic,  

Suggested update for Policy  

This could be a recommendation but currently is not a legal requirement if this is something 
the Authority wanted to impose the policy would need to go back out to public consultation 
(see point 14 Conditions – General) 

 Provision by traders of sufficient litterbin capacity during their time on site. 

Suggested update for Policy  

This is already on the standard conditions -  (See point 10 Conditions – General) 
 

 Clearing-up of all loose litter in the vicinity arising from their activities, before leaving 
site.  

Suggested update for Policy  

This could be added onto the standard conditions – (See point 10 Conditions – General) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 
Cllr Jill Gascoigne 
Derwent & Hope Woodlands Parish Council 

 
 I can't find anything about traders being responsible for litter created by them in the wider 
area,  i.e. away from the main trading site. Also, nothing about using compostable or 
recyclable packaging, nor about the trader promoting responsibility for taking litter home to 
their customers.  This would be a good opportunity ( and costing HPBC virtually nothing) to 
begin addressing the current blight of rubbish in the High Peak.  
 

Suggested update for Policy  

This has been dealt with on the previous comment  

 
Indoor Market Areas  

 
Indoor market areas do not constitute street trading as they can be classed as shops which are 
exempt from street trading legislation. 
 
Suggested update for Policy  
 
Indoor Market Areas 
 
Indoor market areas do not constitute street trading as they can be classed as shops which are 
exempt from street trading legislation. 
 
 
Lynn Bannister Questions  
 

 Where can I find a list of the proposed fees? 
 

 Where it says ticketed events - Ticketed Events. If the event is ticketed on private land, then 
no consent is required. However, if the event is on private land but accessible to the public, 
then a consent will be required, and the applicant must produce a written 
authorisation from the landowner to the Council with their application. 

 

 If the event is on public land, ie a street, but it is ticketed with barriers at entrances what are 
the rules? I think this is how it is done in Mellor. Also would residents already living inside 
the designated area be classed as the public? Last one, is town council land classed as 
private or public? 

 
Response to Lynn Bannister Queries. 
 

 There is no proposal to change the fees for Street Trading commencing 01 April 2021. 

 No consent would be required if the event is ticketed but members of the public must not 
be able to access without a ticket so the organiser would need to ensure all public points of 
access have barriers. It may be applicable for the organiser to ensure residents affected are 
issued with tickets. 

Page 28



 Not ticketed and accessible to the public - consent required and permission from land 
owner. 

 If it is Town Council land then permission from the Town Council would need to be granted. 
Suggested update to Policy  
 
Not needed as just clarification. 
 
Lynn Bannister additional info/response 
Feedback from us is that the system seems a little inflexible. The 7 day cut off for any changes due to 
the nature of the events is problematic. Traders cancel at the last minute and substitutes have to be 
found. At the bigger events this isn’t so much of a problem but when we’ve advertised a food option 
at the Duck Race for instance where we only have one sweet, one savoury and one drinks vendor it 
caused huge problems.  
 
Suggested update to Policy  
 
No Change – The Authority requires at least 7 days to enable the necessary checks to be carried out 
on the trader and to process the consent.  
 
Paul Bohan 
 

I have been involved in community events at which there has been trading for the last 8 
years. An average of around 35 stalls are involved in trading, around 20% are charities. For 
the first five years, one licence covered the whole event and HPBC waived the fee. Then in 
2018, we were told we would have to get a licence for each non-charity stall.  
 
The event costs around £2000 to run and is partially grant funded by HPBC. Stall holders 
contribute 10% of takings - usually around £800. The rest of the money comes from the 
organising committee selling mulled wine. If there is any profit it pays for a pensioners' 
party. 
 
When we were told we needed to get a licence for each stall, we thought we would have to 
cancel because stall holders (most of whom are hobby - craft people rather than businesses) 
wouldn't pay £25 and give 10% to cover costs. The only way to fund it would be to approach 
HPBC for more money to cover the licences fee. In the end we ran it as a ticketed event, 
charging 1p to avoid the fee. 
 
In the new policy, I'd like to see some leniency to encourage community events, a flexibility 
for licencing officers to waive the fee entirely. This is especially important at the moment as 
we come out of lockdown we need to do all we can to encourage community events. Make 
it too difficult and nobody will give up their spare time to organise them. 
 
Suggested update to the Policy 
 
The current policy makes provisions for charitable events - members to discuss if further concessions 
are necessary.  

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Licensing Committee 

 
15th July 2021 

 

 
TITLE: 

 
Licensing Enforcement 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 

 
Councillor Sloman Executive Councillor for 
Housing and Licensing 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Alicia Patterson – Head of Environmental 
Health 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
(All Wards); 

 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 
1.1 To update members in relation to the enforcement activity undertaken within 

the Licensing Section.  
 
2. Recommendation 

 
2.1      That the committee notes the contents of the report. 

 

3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 In the period November 2020 to May 2021 the Licensing service has remained 

operational throughout the Covid-19 Pandemic and engaged in a number of 
enforcement actions. These activities have involved reactive responses to 
complaints and intelligence received from the public and partner agencies as 
well as proactive compliance checks. We are pleased to report that the 
Licensing Section has noted a good level of compliance overall. 

3.2 Officers seek to encourage licence holders to conduct their activity in a safe 
manner, maintain good standards and to comply with the law. Officers have to 
exercise considerable discretion when approaching individual licence holders. 
Licensees are often anxious to comply with the law and for such cases the 
officer's role will be to provide guidance and advice. However, in carrying out 
their functions officers are authorised with a wide range of powers and may, 
for example, require entry at all reasonable times or require the production of 
certain documents.  
 

3.3 If on enquiry officers find evidence that the law is being broken and 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



  

enforcement is required, they can respond in various ways. They may instruct 
or warn by letter; revoke or suspend a licence; and, where the circumstances 
warrant it, they may formally caution or prosecute without prior warnings and 
without recourse to alternative sanctions. Officers will have due regard to the 
relevant Enforcement Policies when determining the most appropriate course 
of action.  

 
3.4      Below is a summary of enforcement activity carried out during this period. 
 
 

 
 

 The figures shown above include the contacts made with the Taxi Drivers and 
Operators, all contacts have been in relation to the renewal process. Licences 
to drive hackney carriages and private hire vehicles need to be renewed 
annually or three yearly. The Authority sends one reminder out to our drivers 
60 days before their licence is due to expire, advising of any additional checks 
including DBS and Medical assessments, MOT requirements etc.  

 

 The Authority has not issued any penalty points to drivers or operators since 
the last report.  
 

 Two joint visits with Derbyshire Police, one to an unlicensed Scrap Metal Yard 
and one to a licensed premises following a number of complaints of ASB, 
noise, and intimidation. 

 

 In addition to the above the Licensing Section has responded to a number of 
complaints and request for service in relation to the COVID-19 Pandemic.  

 
 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The appropriate enforcement of licensing Legislation in partnership 

with relevant agencies is a key tool in assuring the maintenance of 
community safety. 
 

Charity Collections House to House 19 13 Permits Issued 6 Rejected

Charity Collections Street Collections 18 18 Permits Issued 0 Rejected

Pavement Licenses 7 6 Licenses Issued 1  withdrawn

Personal Alcohol Licenses 31

31 of which 8 were new 

Licenses and 13 changes to 

Holders circumstances

Road Closure Orders 6 6 RCO issued 0 Refused

Small Society Lottery Chase Ups 8

Small Society Lottery Renewals 40

Taxi Drivers 137

Taxi Hackney Vehicles 113

Taxi Operators 15

Taxi Private Hire Vehicles 127

TENS with Alcohol 25

25 of which 10 were LATE 

Notices

TENS without Alcohol 0 0

Page 32



  

 
5. Alternative Options 
 
5.1 There are no alternative options to consider.  
 
 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (Governance & Commissioning) 

 
 
 Contact details 

 Alicia Patterson 
Head of Environmental Health 
alicia.patterson@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Detail 
 
6.1 The primary focus of enforcement work to date has been on ensuring that the 

law in relation to all relevant licensing legislation and guidance is properly 
observed. In considering the focus of this activity the Licensing service has 
had reference to: 
 

 Those premises/vehicles against which complaints have been received. 

 Those premises which do not hold a licence but where intelligence 
suggests licensable activity is taking place 

 
6.2  A variety of breaches were identified in the course of these activities, but were 

addressed by a voluntary change of behaviour on the part of the licence 
holder or via specific action by the Licensing Service and partners. In none of 
the cases was further legal action or the application of criminal sanction 
necessary. 

 
6.3  During this period no complaints have been received relating to smoking on 

licensed premises, specifically: 

 

 As part of the Health Act 2006 and associated Regulations, premises have 
to comply with signage requirements. All premises visited are now 
compliant with displaying the required signage. 

 
 No fixed penalty tickets in relation to offences of witnessed or reported 

smoking in premises have been issued. 
 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Updated Street Trading Policy
	4. Appendix A 1 fUpdated Draft Street Trading Policy
	4. Appendix A 2 Consultation responses

	5 Licensing Enforcement Activity

